Trend Macrolytics, LLC
\ Donald Luskin, Chief Investment Officer

T . d Thomas Demas, Managing Director
ren Michael Warren, Energy Strategist

Data Insights: FOMC Minutes

Wednesday, November 24, 2021

November minutes: key signaling language [Sgilied |mportant  NSHAIMpOrtant

...In their discussion of current conditions, participants noted that, with progress on
vaccinations and strong policy support, indicators of economic activity and
employment had continued to strengthen. The sectors most adversely affected by the
pandemic had improved in recent months, but the summer's rise in COVID-19 cases
had slowed their recovery.

. Overall financial conditions remained accommodative, in part reflecting
policy measures to support the economy and the flow of credit to U.S. households
and businesses. Participants noted that the path of the economy continued to depend
on the course of the virus.

but risks to the economic outlook

remained.

Participants observed that growth in economic activity had slowed in the third quarter
to a rate significantly below the robust pace seen in the first half of the year. The
spread of the Delta variant had contributed to the slowdown in growth in the third
quarter by damping household and business spending, holding down labor supply,
and intensifying supply chain disruptions. Participants noted that the underlying
conditions supporting growth in demand remained strong and that, as the number of
COVID-19 cases remained well below the summer's levels, growth in economic
activity would likely show a pickup in the fourth quarter. They further foresaw robust
growth in 2022, supported by progress on vaccinations and an easing of supply
constraints.

Copyright 2021 Trend Macrolytics LLC. All rights reserved. This document is not to be forwarded to individuals or organizations not
authorized by Trend Macrolytics LLC to receive it. For information purposes only; not to be deemed to be recommendations for buying
or selling specific securities or to constitute personalized investment advice. Derived from sources deemed to be reliable, but no
warranty is made as to accuracy.


https://www.federalreserve.gov/monetarypolicy/fomcminutes2021103.htm

In their discussion of the household sector, participants remarked that demand for
most consumer goods had remained strong. They noted that businesses had generally
recorded robust sales despite labor shortages and other supply disruptions that had
prevented them from fully meeting higher demand for their products.

Participants observed that households had strong
balance sheets and that consumer spending would also be supported by
accommodative financial conditions. A number of participants noted that there was
likely to be a drag on household spending as previous fiscal support faded, or that
fiscal policy might provide some support to aggregate demand if the Congress
authorized major new federal appropriations.

Participants noted that data received over the intermeeting period indicated that
labor market conditions had continued to improve. Al-though the September increase
in payrolls had been moderate compared with recent months, the unemployment rate
had declined further and previous months' job growth had been revised up.
Participants observed that September's rise in payrolls had been held down by a
shortage of workers, in part reflecting the ongoing effect of the virus on labor supply
decisions. With COVID-19 cases expected to remain below the summer's levels,

participants anticipated better payroll numbers in the months ahead P liciparLs



indicated that District contacts continued to report difficulties in finding and retaining
workers and that, in addition to offering higher wages, businesses were turning to
increased use of automation.

While recognizing that labor market conditions varied significantly across the country,
some participants cited a number of signs that the U.S. labor market was very tight:
These included data on quits, job availability, and stronger rates of nominal wage
growth reflected in the recent rise in the employment cost index, as well as the
readings provided by the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City's Labor Market
Conditions Indicators.

. Several other participants suggested that
labor supply was currently being depressed by pandemic-related factors such as
disruptions related to caregiving arrangements and noted that the importance of such
factors would likely diminish as economic and public health conditions improved
further.

They remarked that the Delta
wave had intensified the impediments to supply chains and had helped sustain the
high level of goods demand, adding to the upward pressure on prices. Participants
also observed that increases in energy prices, stronger rates of nominal wage growth,

and higher housing rental costs had been forces adding to inflation. .

Although participants expected significant inflation pressures to last for longer than
they previously expected, they generally continued to anticipate that the inflation rate
would diminish significantly during 2022 as supply and demand imbalances abated.




Participants observed that uncertainty about the economic outlook remained high.
They particularly stressed uncertainties associated with the labor market, including
the evolution of labor force participation, and with the length of time required to

resolve the supply chain situation.




Upside risks to economic activity included a potential near-term boost to aggregate
demand that could arise from the drawing down of the substantial savings
accumulated by households since the beginning of the pandemic. A few participants
mentioned an upsurge in COVID-19 cases during the coming winter or an emergence
of new virus strains as possibilities that, if they were realized, would damp economic
activity and intensify price pressures.

A number of participants commented on issues related to financial stability. A couple
of participants noted factors supporting the strength and resilience of the U.S.
financial system, including the solid capital and liquidity conditions of banks and the
fact that underwriting standards for residential mortgages had not eased
substantially in an environment of rising house prices. A few participants emphasized
the importance of maintaining strong bank capital positions, particularly at the largest
banks. A few participants also cited a number of factors representing potential
vulnerabilities to the financial system: These included elevated asset valuations
prevailing widely across asset classes, the growing exposure of banks to nonbank
financial firms, and the risk of a sudden reduction in the liquidity of collateral used at
central counterparty clearing and settlement systems. In the area of cybersecurity, a
few participants stressed the importance of greater preparedness against a
cyberattack that could disrupt the nation's payments process and financial system.
Several participants commented on the financial stability risks—including those
relating to maturity and liquidity transformation—associated with stablecoins and on
the need for regulators to address these risks. A few participants noted the
importance of developing systematic monitoring of the climate-related risks facing
the financial system.

In their consideration of the stance of monetary policy, participants agreed that the
economy had made substantial further progress toward the Committee's goals since
December 2020, when the Committee adopted its guidance regarding asset
purchases. The unemployment rate had declined to 4.8 percent in September—about
2 percentage points lower than the level last December—and job openings and other
indicators also were pointing to widespread strength in labor demand, consistent
with a broad improvement in labor market conditions. Consequently,




Participants generally supported the plan to implement reductions in the
pace of net purchases of Treasury securities and agency MBS by $10 billion and $5
billion per month, respectively, over the upcoming intermeeting period and judged
that similar reductions in the pace would likely be appropriate in each subsequent
month. Some participants preferred a somewhat faster pace of reductions that would
result in an earlier conclusion to net purchases.

Participants stressed that maintaining flexibility to implement appropriate policy
adjustments on the basis of risk-management considerations should be a guiding
principle in conducting policy in the current highly uncertain environment.



